Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 11-2419 MC



)

BUELL V. & MARILYN J. APPLEBURY,
)

d/b/a JUDYS VIP TOURS
)




)



Respondent. 
)

DECISION 


Buell V. and Marilyn J. Applebury (“Respondents”), d/b/a Judys
 VIP Tours, violated state law and federal regulations.  We grant the motion for summary decision filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) and cancel the hearing.
Procedure


The MHTC filed a complaint on December 21, 2011.  Both Respondents were served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on December 24, 2011.  Respondents did not file an answer to the complaint.  


On February 16, 2012, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  On March 15, 2012, Respondents filed a response to the motion.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(6) provides 
that we may decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Respondents do not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.

The following facts as established by the MHTC are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Respondents do business under the fictitious name Judys VIP Tours.  Their principal place of business is located at 618 Commercial Street, Chillicothe, Missouri.

Count I – Proof of Insurance

2. On February 26, 2010, Respondents’ employee, Russell Sipes, operated a 2008 Ford passenger van with the capacity to transport 15 passengers, assigned Company Number V8128  (“the Van-V8128”), in intrastate commerce transporting 13 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.
3. On June 6, 2010, Sipes operated a 2008 Ford passenger van with the capacity to transport 15 passengers, assigned Company Number V8106  (“the Van-V8106”),  in intrastate commerce transporting 12 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.
4. On June 25, 2010, Sipes operated the Van-V8106, in intrastate commerce transporting 11 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.
5. Respondents were compensated for these trips.  On these dates, Respondents had not filed with the Missouri Department of Transportation the required proof of insurance coverage certifying that Respondents had in force the required minimum limits of liability insurance coverage.
Count II – Vehicle Inspection Report
6. On May 21, 2010, Sipes operated the Van-V8106 in intrastate commerce transporting 12 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.
7. On June 25, 2010, Sipes operated the Van-V8106 in intrastate commerce transporting 11 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.

8. Respondents were compensated for these trips.  On these dates, Respondents did not require Sipes to complete a driver vehicle inspection report at the completion of that day’s work on the van.
Count III – Vehicle Not Periodically Inspected
9. On February 26, 2010, Sipes operated the Van-V8128 in intrastate commerce transporting 13 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.

10. On April 30, 2010, Sipes operated the Van-V8106 in intrastate commerce transporting 11 passengers from Chillicothe, Missouri, to Boonville, Missouri.

11. Respondents were compensated for these trips.  Respondents did not inspect or cause the vehicles to be inspected at least once within the preceding 12 months.

Count IV – No Certificate
12. On the dates listed above, Respondents did not have a certificate issued that authorized them to engage in the business of a common carrier in instrastate commerce on a public highway in the state.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Respondents have violated the law.
 


Count I


Title 49 CFR 392.2 states:

Every commercial motor vehicle must be operated in accordance with the laws, ordinances, and regulations of the jurisdiction in which it is being operated.  However, if a regulation of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration imposes a higher standard of care than that law, ordinance or regulation, the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration regulation must be complied with.
The MHTC argues that Respondents violated 49 CFR § 392.2, because they violated § 390.126:

1.  No motor carrier shall operate any motor vehicle on any public highway in this state until after such carrier shall have filed with, and same has been approved by the division, a certificate of any insurance carrier duly authorized to do business in their state certifying that there is in effect a liability insurance policy or bond in some reliable insurance company or association or other insurer satisfactory to the division . . . .

The following terms are defined in 49 CFR § 390.5:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle –

***

(3) Is designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers (including the driver) for compensation[.]
***

Employee means any individual, other than an employer, who is employed by an employer and who in the course of his or her employment directly affects commercial motor vehicle safety.  Such term includes a driver of a commercial motor vehicle[.]

***

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.

* * *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.

Both vans were designed to transport 15 passengers.  Both vans were commercial motor vehicles under this definition.  Respondents were for-hire motor carriers because they transported passengers for compensation.  Sipes was Respondents’ employee.


Respondents used their employee to operate a commercial motor vehic1e without having filed the required proof of insurance coverage.  They violated § 390.126 and 49 CFR § 392.2.
Count II 


Title 49 CFR § 396.11(a)(1) states:

(a) Report required.

(l) Motor Carriers.  Every motor carrier must require its drivers to report, and every driver must prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day’s work on each vehicle operated . . . . 
The MHTC argues that Respondents violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a)(1), and § 307.400
:

1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.


On May 21, 2010, and June 25, 2010, Respondents used their employee to operate a commercial motor vehicle without requiring him to complete a driver vehicle inspection report at the completion of that day’s work on the Van-V8106.  They violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a)(1), and § 307.400.

Count III

Title 49 CFR § 396.17 states:
(a)
Every commercial motor vehicle must be inspected as required by this section. . . .
(b)
. . . motor carriers must inspect or cause to be inspected all motor vehicles subject to their control.
(c)
A motor carrier must not use a commercial motor vehicle . . . unless each component . . . has passed an inspection in accordance with the terms of this section at least once during the preceding 12 months and documentation of such inspection is on the vehicle . . .
We agree that Respondents violated 49 CFR § 396.17(a), (b), and (c), and § 307.400 when they  used their employee to operate a commercial motor vehicle that they did not inspect or cause to be inspected at least once within the preceding 12 months.

Count IV


Section 390.051 states:

1.  Except as otherwise provided in section 390.030, no person shall engage in the business of a common carrier in instrastate commerce on any public highway in this state unless there is in force with respect to such carrier a certificate issued by the division authorizing such operations.

Respondents did not fall within any exception to this law.  On the occasions set forth in the complaint, Respondents engaged in the business of a common carrier in instrastate commerce on public highways in this state when they did not have a valid certificate.  They violated § 390.051.
Respondents’ Response


In their response to the motion for summary decision, Respondents state that they were not aware that they were required to comply with the statutes and regulations cited in the complaint and did not intend to violate the law.  They state that Marilyn J. Applebury self-
reported the trips to the state inspector, and they ask us to direct the MHTC to issue a fine or penalty only in the amount of net proceeds realized from the trips.

Under § 621.040,
 we determine whether there have been violations of the law.  We have done so in this decision.  After this determination, the authority to order the fine and determine the amount of the fine/penalty lies with the circuit court.

Summary

Respondents violated state law and federal regulations.  We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing. 


SO ORDERED on March 28, 2012.


________________________________



KAREN A. WINN


Commissioner

�We do not include the apostrophe in “Judys” because it is not shown on the complaint or on the documents from the Secretary of State.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4, RSMo Supp. 2011.  Statutory references are to RSMo 2000 unless otherwise noted.  


	�Section 622.350, RSMo Supp. 2011.


�RSMo Supp. 2011.


�RSMo Supp. 2011


�RSMo Supp. 2011


�Section 390.156; § 390.176; § 622.480; § 622.510.
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